
PASCAGOULA CITY COUNCIL 

 REGULAR MEETING – TUESDAY, AUGUST 2, 2016, 6:00 P.M. 

 

 WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER: 

 

 INVOCATION:     Councilman Hill 

 

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilman Jackson 

 

ADDRESS THE COUNCIL: 

 

1. Jimmy Colmer regarding: Waiver of Section 30-71 of the Code Ordinances prohibiting 

discharge of fireworks in the City 

 

2. Laura Cooley regarding: Market Street 

 

3. Pascagoula Recreation Commission regarding: Prepared Food Tax presentation discussion 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS – RESOLUTIONS FOR PROPERTY CLEANUP: 

 

4. Adopt Resolution for 2704 Canty (continued from July 5, 2016, meeting) 

 

5. Adopt Resolution for 1900 Denny Avenue and 3106 Louise Street 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA:* 

 

6. Minutes of the recessed regular Council meetings of July 19 and 25, 2016 

Recommended Action: adopt and approve minutes. 

 

7.  Minutes of the Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority meetings of June 6 and 30, 2016 

Recommended Action: acknowledge receipt of minutes. 

 

8.  Minutes of the Recreation Commission meeting of June 1, 2016 

Recommended Action:  acknowledge receipt of minutes. 

 

9. Unmarked Cars for the Police Department 

Recommended Action: approve authorizing the use of four (4) Police vehicles as unmarked in 

accordance with Section 25-1-87 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended.  

 

10.  Postage funds of $3,000.00 for the direct debit/postage-on-call meter setting service with 

Neo-Post 

Recommended Action: approve postage funds for City Hall. 

 

11.  FY 2016 Action Plan 

Recommended Action: approve the resolution authorizing submission of the CDBG FY2016 

Action Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and authorize the 

Mayor to execute the related documents. Funding associated with the Action Plan is 

approximately $179,527 for which no match is required. 

 



12.  Parks & Recreation Fee Schedule 

Recommended Action:  accept and approve the Parks & Recreation Fee Schedule. 

 

13. Ordinance to amend Section 58-31 of the Code of Ordinances to increase the number of 

Commissioners serving on the Recreation Commission 

Recommended Action:  approve Ordinance. 

 

14.  Advertising the resources of the City through the Mississippi Gulf Coast Blues Commission 

25th Annual Blues & Heritage Festival, Bronze Package - $500.00 on September 9, 2016. 

Recommended Action:  approve advertising  

 

15.  Resolution authorizing the transfer of assets (Go-Devil Boat) to Jackson County 

Recommended Action: adopt Resolution and authorize the City Manager to execute related 

documents. 

 

16.  Motorcycle Lease Extension Agreement with Bruce Rossmeyer’s Daytona Harley-Davidson 

of Ormond Beach, FL, as recommended by Kenny Johnson, Police Chief, under the same 

terms and conditions for twenty-four (24) months at $425.00 per bike per month for five (5) 

police motorcycles.  

Recommended Action: approval of the Motorcycle Lease Extension Agreement with Bruce 

Rossmeyer’s Daytona Harley-Davidson of Ormond Beach, FL, as recommended. The contract 

dates will be December 1, 2016 through November 30, 2018.  

 

17. Minutes of the Historic Preservation Commission meeting of June 22, 2016 

Recommended Action: acknowledge receipt of minutes. 

 

 

CITY MANAGER 

 

18. City of Pascagoula Flagship Citizen’s Award 

 

19. Pascagoula Recreation Commission Appointment - 2016 

Recommended Action:  appoint new member of the Recreation Commission. 

 

 

CITY ATTORNEY 

 

20. Appointment of a new Election Commissioner. Mike Murphy resigned his position effective 

immediately  

Recommended Action:  appoint new Election Commissioner 

 

 

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

21. Central Business District Residential Tax Exemption Policy 

Recommended Action:  approve the Central Business District Residential Tax Exemption 

Policy 

 

 



 

CLAIMS DOCKET 

 

22. Order for Docket of Claims for August 2, 2016 

Recommended Action: approve Order for Docket of Claims 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:            

 

Potential Section 42 litigation, JCUA legal matters,  Location of a business, Establish Just 

Compensation for Hospital Road Project 

 

RECESS: 

 

Wednesday, August 3, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. 

 

 
* Consent Agenda – All matters listed under Consent Agenda, are considered routine by the  

 City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will not be separate discussion of these items.  If   

discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

 



       



cwarren
Typewritten Text
1.









For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date:  8/2/16     

 
Submitting Department or Individual:  City Manager   

 
Contact Name:  Laura Cooley    Phone:             

 

 

Agenda Topic:  Laura Cooley to address the Council re: Market St.  
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:   

           

 
Budgeted Item  Yes    No    Source of Funding    General Fund 
 

Contract Required  Yes    No        Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required  Yes    No        Grant 
 

              Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 2.



       



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

Meeting Date: August 2, 2016   

 
Submitting Department or Individual: Parks & Recreation Department  

 
Contact Name: Darcie Crew  Phone: 228-938-2356 

 

 

Agenda Topic: Prepared Food Tax Presentation Discussion 
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:  
The Pascagoula Recreation Commission would like to present some ideas to Council regarding the campaign for 
the Prepared Food Tax Referendum in August.  

 
Budgeted Item Yes  No  Source of Funding  General Fund 
 

Contract Required Yes  No    Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required Yes  No    Grant 
 

       Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 3



       



cwarren
Typewritten Text
4.







       



cwarren
Typewritten Text
5.







       



cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 6



















































































































       



Agenda Number:  

8-2-2016

Community and Economic Development

LaLinda Grace 228-938-2352

Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority Minutes

Acknowledge minutes of PRA 6-6-2016 and 6-30-2016 meetings.

cwarren
Typewritten Text
7.



1 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING  

10:00 AM Monday, June 6, 2016  
JCEDF, 3033 Pascagoula Street, Pascagoula, Mississippi 

 

The Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority met at JCEDF in a regular meeting on 
Monday, June 6, 2016, at 10:00 AM. Henry Fox, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 10:10 
AM with the following present: 

 
Chairman, Henry Fox 
Vice Chairman, Alan Sudduth 
Secretary/Treasurer, Alice Walker 
 
PRA Executive Director, Jen Dearman 
Economic Development Specialist, LaLinda Grace 
PRA Attorney, Taylor McNeel 
JCEDF, Christine Pate 
Michael Fondren 
 
Jackie Grimes was absent. 
 
 PRA Chairman Fox welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

***** 
The first item for consideration was the minutes from the PRA meeting held on May 12, 

2016, as recommended by Alice Walker, Secretary/Treasurer.  
After review, Sudduth moved to approve and adopt the minutes as amended.  The 

motion was seconded by Walker.   
All present Board members were in favor. 

***** 
 The next item for consideration was the financial report. 

 After review, Walker moved to accept the financial report and authorize PRA 

Comptroller Bobby Parker to issue a manual check for Anchor Square rent revenue, legal 

services, and the termite renewal policy for Anchor Square. 

 All present Board members were in favor.   

***** 
 
 



2 
 

The next item for consideration was the Anchor Square lease approval for Demond 

Rodgers. After discussion, Walker moved to approve the lease.  The motion was seconded by 

Sudduth.  

All present Board Members were in favor.  

        ***** 
Jim Estabrook joined the meeting at 10:20AM. 

***** 
Sudduth moved to close the meeting to consider going into Executive Session.  The 

motion was seconded by Walker. 
 All present Board members were in favor.   

***** 
 Sudduth moved to go into Executive Session for the location, relocation, or expansion of 
business or industry.  The motion was seconded by Walker. 
 All present Board members were in favor. 

         ***** 
Michael Fondren left the meeting at 10:35AM. 

***** 
Estabrook moved to end Executive Session and return to open session. The motion was 

seconded by Sudduth. 
 All present Board members were in favor. 

***** 
A discussion was held in regards to the Riverfront.   
No action was required of the Board. 
     ***** 
A discussion was held in regards to the Commercial Development Incentive Program.   
No action was required of the Board. 

***** 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Sudduth moved to adjourn 

the meeting.  The motion was seconded by Walker.   
All Board members were in favor.  
The meeting ended at 12:00 PM. 
 



1 
 

 
SPECIAL MEETING  

1:00 PM Thursday, June 30, 2016  
JCEDF, 3033 Pascagoula Street, Pascagoula, Mississippi 

 

The Pascagoula Redevelopment Authority met at JCEDF in a special meeting on 
Thursday, June 30, 2016, at 1:00 PM. Henry Fox, Chairman, called the meeting to order at 1:07 
PM with the following present: 

 
Chairman, Henry Fox 
Vice Chairman, Alan Sudduth 
Secretary/Treasurer, Alice Walker 
Board Member, Jim Estabrook 
Board Member, Jackie Grimes 
 
PRA Executive Director, Jen Dearman 
Economic Development Specialist, LaLinda Grace 
JCEDF, Christine Pate 
Coldwell Banker, Kenneth Jones 
Coldwell Banker, Carlene Alfonso 
Elliott Homes, Brandon Elliott 
 
 PRA Chairman Fox welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

***** 
Walker moved to close the meeting to consider going into Executive Session.  The 

motion was seconded by Estabrook. 
 All Board members were in favor.   

***** 
 Sudduth moved to go into Executive Session for the location, relocation, or expansion of 
business or industry.  The motion was seconded by Grimes. 
 All Board members were in favor. 

         ***** 
Christine Pate left the meeting at 2:15PM.   

***** 
Kenneth Jones, Carlene Alfonso, and Brandon Elliott left the meeting at 2:30PM. 

***** 
 



2 
 

Estabrook moved to end Executive Session and return to open session. The motion was 
seconded by Walker. 
 All Board members were in favor. 

***** 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Grimes moved to adjourn 

the meeting.  The motion was seconded by Estabrook.   
All Board members were in favor.  
The meeting ended at 3:00 PM. 
 



       



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date:  August 2, 2016     

 
Submitting Department or Individual:  Parks & Recreation Dept.   

 
Contact Name:  Darcie Crew    Phone:  228‐938‐2356 

 

 

Agenda Topic:  Recreation Commission Minutes
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:   
Acknowledge  minutes  of  Recreation  Commission  meeting  on  June  1,  2016  approved  by  the  Pascagoula 
Recreation Commission on July 6, 2016.  

 
Budgeted Item  Yes    No    Source of Funding    General Fund 
 

Contract Required  Yes    No        Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required  Yes    No        Grant 
 

              Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 8



 
 

PASCAGOULA RECREATION COMMISSION 
MEETING JUNE 1, 2016 

 
Mike McElhaney opened the meeting at 6:00 pm.  He welcomed guests Steve 
Jordan, Dr. Randy Roth, Noah Hamilton, and Brian Hinkle to the meeting. Mike 
also congratulated Johnny Olsen on his appointment as Head Coach for 
Resurrection Catholic School’s Baseball Team. 
 
Paul Hembree made the motion to approve the May 4, 2016 minutes as presented. 
Jay Spradlin seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  
 
MCC Park – Resurrection Eagles: Brian Hinkle introduced the idea for RCS to 
make improvements at MCC Park for Girls High School Softball and Boys High 
School and Middle School Baseball.  He presented the Commission with a handout 
of a presentation of his talking points (attached).  He concluded that RCS would 
like to make MCC their home field and see how a partnership with the City to 
make improvements could work. 
Steve Jordan presented a sketch of the fields and a spreadsheet of the phases they 
would like to complete with budget numbers.  The priorities are: 
Phase I=$72,300: Installing new fences to rearrange the fields to have a 200’ 
softball field and a 310’ baseball field.  They would do so by utilizing the outfield 
fence of the West field and moving home plate. They would also use the current 
fence lines for the boys field but move home plate back toward the backstop and 
install a new 8’ wooden outfield fence.  They would tear down the backstops and 
install a knee wall and net.  They would also like to install new dugouts. New 
irrigation would be installed and they would like to sprig the outfields with a 
hybrid Bermuda grass. They would also like to remove the basketball court and 
suggested the City move it to IG Levy Park.  
Phase II: Construction a dressing room, coach’s office and hitting facility. 
Phase III: Fan seating and scoreboards. 
 



They asked if Darcie could contact the Planning and Building Dept. about the base 
flood elevation requirements at this location.  She will do so. 
 
Lewis Sims made a motion to make a recommendation to City Council to match up 
to $25,000 to match funds raised by RCS for the materials needed for Phase I of 
the project, as it falls with the recreation plan (with RCS providing all of the labor). 
Paul Hembree seconded the motion.  After discussion Mr. Sims amended his 
motion to match dollar for dollar of the school’s fundraising for this project up to 
$35,000. The vote passed unanimously. 
 
Darcie will prepare and agenda item for the City Council to consider at the June 
21, 2016 meeting.   
 
Old Business:   
Hotel Tax: The hotel tax information was presented.  $1,395,448.18 has been 
collected since collections started in 2005.  The total amount remaining after 
projects have been completed is $574,380.45.   The receipts collected in May 2016 
were $20,255.18 
 
Recreation Improvements Update: Jay Spradlin provided an update.  The 
committee met on 5/31/16.  Jay stated that there has not been much communication 
with the school district due to their strategic planning efforts coming this fall.  Jay 
stated that Geoff Clemens and Jon Reynolds are working on renderings to give to 
City Council with a task order for the June 21, 2016 meeting. 
 
Project Update: Darcie gave the Commission an update on the Point channel 
dredging.  There is an additional section of dredging that leads to the Pascagoula 
River Channel.  The change order was presented to the Jackson County Board of 
Supervisors in May and agreed upon by the City Council.  Work should be done in 
the coming months. 
A scope of work has been created for the ADA restroom renovations at MCC Park.  
Quotes are being received.  This work should be done this summer. 
BB Jennings Boardwalk project: the property line concern is resolved and design is 
moving forward.  We expect to have this project underway this year.   
The Beach Promenade project bids were awarded by City Council, contingent 
upon outside agency approval.  We expect this project to start in June.   
 
New Business: 
USA Head’s Up Football: Lewis Sims attended a state coach’s meeting in April 
where they discussed the Head’s Up Initiative by USA Football where youth and 



school coaches can receive on-line training for proper tackling techniques and 
concussion training.  Lewis will send Darcie the information to get to the Jackson 
County Football League.  Al Brimm asked Lewis is he would be willing to work 
with the coaches.  He said yes.   
Darcie will put this back on the agenda for July.  Lewis will bring information for 
the Commission.  
 
Program Information: Darcie shared information about upcoming events and 
programs. She distributed the summer newsletter in case some did not receive it at 
the last meeting. 

1. Movie Night Under the Stars – June 10, 8:15pm, Beach Park 
2. 2nd Saturday Bike Ride, June 11th, 8am, Beach Park 
3. Swimming Lessons 
4. Summer Camps (see newsletter) 
5. 4th of July Fireworks 
6. Do Better Divas, Wellness & Fitness Classes, Tu-Th, 6pm 
7. Karate, Mondays and Thursdays, 6 & 7pm 
8. Swing Dance, Thursdays, 7pm 
9. Aerobics, Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays, 8am 

 
Paul Hembree commended the Recreation Dept. Staff on hosting the 2016 
Mississippi Senior Games.  Paul attended the basketball event and talked with an 
88 year old man who played in the games who enjoyed the tournament and the 
City very much. 
Al Brimm mentioned how nice the Sounds by the Sea event was.  He thought that 
the “event” arrow banners were a great idea.  The Pascagoula Police Dept. 
presence was also appreciated.  He commented how nice the event was this year.  
 
There being no other business, Paul Hembree made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 7:28 pm.  Jay Spradlin seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
The next meeting will be held at 6:00 pm on July 6, 2016 at the Pascagoula 
Recreation Center.  
 
      /s/s Darcie S. Crew    

Darcie S. Crew, Secretary 
 
 
 



Members present:    Members absent: 
Mike McElhaney, Chairman  David Blackledge  
Paul Hembree, Vice Chairman    
Lee Tingle 
Mike Tillman     
Lewis Sims 
Becky Fulton  
Al Brimm  
Jay Spradlin  
Johnny Olsen      













PHASE I

Irrigation

approx 35 Heads PGA Valves 1 8,000.00$     8,000.00$                                

(Softball 21 Heads PGA Valves 1 5,000.00$     5,000.00$                                

Hybrid Bermuda Sprigging 1 $13,000.00 13,000.00$                             

‐$                                          

Dugouts ‐$                                          

Block walls 40 Ft Long 4 1,500.00$     6,000.00$                                

Footer 4 250.00$        1,000.00$                                

Roof 4 750.00$        3,000.00$                                

Cubbies for Gloves/Hats 2 300.00$        600.00$                                   

Half Wall Front 2 600.00$        1,200.00$                                

 Rubber Mat 2 300.00$        600.00$                                   

Benches 8 ft section 8 300.00$        2,400.00$                                

Knee Wall Backstop ‐$                                          

About 200 LF 1 5,000.00$     5,000.00$                                

Softball 120 LF 1 3,000.00$     3,000.00$                                

Footer 2 1,000.00$     2,000.00$                                

Pipe and Netting 2 2,500.00$     5,000.00$                                

Outfield Fence ‐$                                          

8' Wood Fence ‐$                                          

550 LF 1 11,000.00$  11,000.00$                             

Softball 275 LF 1 5,500.00$     5,500.00$                                

Phase 1 Total 72,300.00$                             

PHASE II

Training/Offices/Dressing ‐$                                          

Building 60 x 80 x 16 1 25,000.00$  25,000.00$                             

Labor for Erecting Building 1 12,000.00$  12,000.00$                             

Slab (Concrete & Labor) 1 9,800.00$     9,800.00$                                

Lighting 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$                             

Ac & Heat 1 8,000.00$     8,000.00$                                

Insulation 1 16,000.00$  16,000.00$                             

Offices (material) 1 2,500.00$     2,500.00$                                

Netting and Flooring 1 31,000.00$  31,000.00$                             

‐$                                          

Home Plate Hitting Mats 2 $360.00 720.00$                                   

Pitching Mounds 2 $1,000.00 2,000.00$                                

Atec Pro Ball Basket 2 $150.00 300.00$                                   

L Screens 2 $300.00 600.00$                                   

Batting Tees 4 $75.00 300.00$                                   

Phase II Total 118,220.00$                           

PHASE III

Fan Seating w/ Press Box 1 40,000.00$  40,000.00$                             

Scoreboard 1 25,000.00$  25,000.00$                             

Phase III Total 65,000.00$                             





Agenda Number:  

8/2/2016

Police Department

Kenny Johnson 762-2211

Unmarked Cars for the Police Department

Council approval authorizing the use of four (4) Police vehicles as unmarked in accordance
with section 25-1-87 of the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended. A schedule of vehicles is
attached. 

rwood
Typewritten Text

rwood
Typewritten Text

cwarren
Typewritten Text
9.



Robin Wood Phone: (228) 938-6722
Purchasing Agent Fax:     (228) 938-6749
rwood@cityofpascagoula.com

                                                     603 Watts Avenue - P.O. Drawer 908
                                              Pascagoula, MS 39567 - Pascagoula, MS  39568-0908

July 28, 2016

Schedule of Vehicles: Request to use Police vehicles as unmarked

Asset # Year Make Model VIN#
15327 2016 FORD ESCAPE 1FMCUOE75GUA60506
15328 2016 FORD ESCAPE 1FMCUOF7XGUA42471
15329 2016 FORD F150 1FTEW1EF7GRB02958
15336 2013 TOYOTA TACOMA 5TFLU4EN3DX070232



Agenda Number:  

8-2-16

City Clerk's Office

Karen Kennedy 938-6615

Postage funds of $3,000.00 for the direct debit/postage-on-call meter setting 
service with Neo-Post

Approve postage funds for City Hall

✔

cwarren
Typewritten Text
10.



       



cwarren
Typewritten Text
11.



















 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

1 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary  

AP-05 Executive Summary - 24 CFR 91.200(c), 91.220(b) 

1. Introduction 

The City of Pascagoula’s 2016 One-Year Action Plan is a component of its 2015-2019 Five-Year 

Consolidated Plan and serves as the City’s application to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD) for entitlement grants.  For Program Year 2016, which begins October 1, 2016, and 

ends September 30, 2017, the City of Pascagoula (the City) was allocated $179,527 in Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds from HUD; it does not anticipate receiving any CDBG Program 

Income in the 2016 Program Year.  

The City is not a formula entitlement recipient under HUD’s Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), Housing 

Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) or HOME Programs.   This Action Plan identifies the City 

of Pascagoula’s sources of Program Year 2016 funds and other resources available to plan and 

implement specific activities that are intended to primarily benefit low- to moderate-income residents 

by meeting their housing and nonhousing community development needs.   

Through its citizen-based public planning process described in this Action Plan and the City’s 2015-2019 

Consolidated Plan, the community’s housing and nonhousing community development needs and 

priorities were identified.   Input provided by citizens, citizen groups and nonprofit organizations, in 

particular those agencies structured to deliver housing and supportive services to Pascagoula’s low- and 

moderate-income residents, assisted the City in identifying community priorities that focus on: 1) 

improving the quality of life for residents, especially in areas where the majority of households qualify as 

low- to moderate-income; and 2) expanding public services for very low, low and moderate-income 

families, the homeless and qualified residents with special needs, such as the elderly, persons 

experiencing domestic violence, and disabled persons.  

2. Summarize the objectives and outcomes identified in the Plan   

This could be a restatement of items or a table listed elsewhere in the plan or a reference to 

another location. It may also contain any essential items from the housing and homeless needs 

assessment, the housing market analysis or the strategic plan. 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

2 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

As identified in its 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, the City’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Entitlement Program is guided by the overarching of goal of developing a viable community in which all 

residents, but especially those in low- to moderate-income households and those who have special 

needs, enjoy: 

 decent housing; 

 suitable living environments; and 

 economic opportunities.   

 The City will continue to address its unmet housing and nonhousing community development needs 

by:  supporting improved access to affordable housing; providing housing assistance services; 

implementing activities to provide suitable living environments; and addressing unmet needs of the 

homeless and special needs populations through funded qualified public services.  Working 

collaboratively with public and private agencies, organizations, community leaders, residents and other 

interested parties, the City strives to accomplish this goal by achieving objectives identified and 

prioritized as part of the annual CDBG Action Plan development process.  Each One-Year Action Plan 

supplements information and citizen input detailed in the current Five-Year Consolidated Plan.   

The City adhered to its citizen participation plan during development of the 2016 Action Plan to 

encourage and consider citizen input, as detailed in Section AP-12.   Community priorities and unmet 

needs identified during development of the 2016 Action Plan supplement those identified in the City’s 

2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and guided identification of proposed CDBG-funded activities.  The City’s 

ability to comprehensively address its unmet community needs, which are considerable, is constrained 

by the limited amount of CDBG resources annually allocated to it by HUD.  Every effort is made to 

maximize public benefits by leveraging other funding resources.  By investing CDBG funds at the 

neighborhood and individual household level, the City improves the quality of life for the greatest 

possible number of residents, particularly for those who reside in low- to moderate-income households, 

the homeless, and those who have special needs.  

Activities identified for implementation in Pascagoula’s 2016 Action Plan are intended to principally 

benefit low- to moderate-income residents by funding neighborhood improvement activities that 

improve the living environment in primarily residential areas in which the majority of households qualify 

as low- to moderate-income.   These activities also will stimulate neighborhood revitalization by 

encouraging individual residents to maintain and improve their property in compliance with local code 

requirements.  The outcomes of this effort will be improved housing conditions and healthier, safer 

living environments.    

3. Evaluation of past performance  

This is an evaluation of past performance that helped lead the grantee to choose its goals or 

projects. 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

3 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

The City monitors its performance in terms of meeting HUD national objectives; spending CDBG funds 

on a timely basis; meeting identified goals with CDBG funds; and complying with HUD regulations and 

policies on an on-going basis through IDIS software tools, monthly reports and staff interaction.   

The City also assesses its performance at least once annually and conducts a public hearing to inform the 

public of its progress in completing activities funded through the CDBG Program.  The City reports past 

performance to HUD annually through its Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 

(CAPER).   

4. Summary of Citizen Participation Process and consultation process  

Summary from citizen participation section of plan. 

The City of Pascagoula encourages citizen participation throughout development of each One-Year 

Action Plan, including this 2016 One-Year Action Plan, in compliance with its Citizen Participation Plan, 

which identifies the specific process the City follows to invite residents and other interested parties to 

participate in identifying and prioritizing community needs and to provide input into the use of 

Community Development Block Grant funds to address those needs.   The City also consulted with 

regional housing and nonhousing community agencies and nonprofits, including the Mississippi Regional 

Housing Authority VIII, the Open Doors Homeless Coalition Continuum of Care, and the Gulf Coast 

Center for NonViolence, in developing the 2016 Action Plan.  

Section AP-12 details the specific steps the City took to comply with the intent and requirements of its 

Citizen Participation Plan to encourage broad input into development of the 2016 Action Plan. This 

included publishing and posting notices, contacting individual nonprofit agencies and organizations to 

encourage their participation, and using social media to expand outreach to residents. 

A public hearing was held at 5:30 p.m. on June 20, 2016 in the Council Chambers of Pascagoula City Hall, 

which is accessible to persons with disabilities; meeting notices provided information about how to 

request accommodations such as a translator or signing assistance.   A 30-day comment period, June 27 

– July 29, 2016, was publicized to encourage public review of the Draft Action Plan and invite public 

input into the development process.   The Pascagoula 2016 Action Plan was submitted for consideration 

of adoption by the City Council at its regular meeting on August 2, 2016, and was submitted to HUD via 

IDIS before August 15, 2016. 

5. Summary of public comments 

This could be a brief narrative summary or reference an attached document from the Citizen 

Participation section of the Con Plan. 

A public hearing to discuss the City of Pascagoula’s 2016 One-Year Action Plan was held on Monday, 

June 20, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of Pascagoula City Hall.  Minutes from the meeting, 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

4 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

as well as copies of the attendance roster, agenda, CDBG Fact Sheet, the official notice published in the 

local newspaper to advertise the hearing, and written comments received are attached to this 

document. 

All oral and written comments offered at the public hearing and additional written comments submitted 

during the June 27 – July 29, 2016 30-day comment period were considered by the City and are 

summarized in the public hearing minutes or, if written, are attached to Pascagoula’s 2016 Action Plan.  

6. Summary of comments or views not accepted and the reasons for not accepting them 

All oral and written comments formally submitted during the public hearing and during the 30-day 

comment period were considered by the City and are summarized in the final 2016 Action Plan.  Lack 

of funding to address all identified needs requires the City to prioritize use of limited CDBG funds to 

maximize benefits for the greatest number of low- to moderate-income residents possible. 

 7. Summary 

In Program Year 2016, the City received a HUD allocation of $179,527 in CDBG Entitlement funds to 

assist the City in addressing some of the unmet housing and nonhousing community development needs 

identified through its citizen participation process.  To the extent possible, the City leverages these 

CDBG funds to maximize public benefit to improve residents’ quality of life, particularly for those who 

reside in low- to moderate-income households, who are homeless or who have special needs.  

The City will continue to work actively with local, regional and state nonprofit agencies and service 

providers that serve its low- to moderate-income residents, the homeless and those with special needs 

by supporting their applications for federal and state assistance when the programs proposed to be 

funded are consistent with Pascagoula's 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and the 2016 Action Plan. 

  

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

5 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

PR-05 Lead & Responsible Agencies – 91.200(b) 

1. Agency/entity responsible for preparing/administering the Consolidated Plan 

Describe the agency/entity responsible for preparing the Consolidated Plan and those responsible for administration of each grant 

program and funding source. 

Agency Role Name Department/Agency 

   

CDBG Administrator   Department of Community and Economic Development 

Table 1 – Responsible Agencies 

 
Narrative (optional) 

 

Consolidated Plan Public Contact Information 

Jen Dearman, Director 

Pascagoula Department of Community and Economic Development 

email:   jdearman@cityofpascagoula.com 

phone:  228-938-6651 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

6 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

AP-10 Consultation – 91.100, 91.200(b), 91.215(l) 

1. Introduction 

The City historically encourages a high level of public participation, public communication and 

consultation to identify and prioritize community goals to maximize the use of limited CDBG Entitlement 

funding.  In keeping with this spirit of collaboration and coordination, the City developed its 2016 Action 

Plan with input from stakeholders that included nonprofit organizations and service providers, 

community leaders, businesses, senior citizens and other interested parties.  Proposed activities and use 

of funds in the 2016 One-Year Action Plan are based on achieving community goals and priorities 

identified in the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan. 

Provide a concise summary of the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance coordination between 

public and assisted housing providers and private and governmental health, mental health 

and service agencies (91.215(l)) 

The City actively works to enhance coordination and collaboration between the regional housing 

authority and regional and local housing and community development service providers.  Regular 

communication among the City, the Regional Housing Authority VIII and local and regional housing and 

social service agencies minimizes duplication of efforts; maximizes effective use of limited resources; 

improves efficient delivery of services and management of client data; and encourages consideration of 

collaborative community-wide solutions to better meet residents’ housing and nonhousing needs. 

On an on-going basis, the City of Pascagoula: 

 Encourages coordination and communication between public and private sector agencies in the 

City’s institutional structure to minimize duplication of efforts. 

 Supports the efforts of the Regional Housing Authority VIII and other organizations to meet the 

housing needs of the elderly and others with special needs with HUD program funding and other 

public and private resources. 

 Supports the efforts of the social service agencies in the City of Pascagoula, Mississippi to 

address the full Continuum of Care. 

 Encourages and considers citizen input regarding the use of HUD resources, in compliance with 

its citizen participation plan. 

 Supports efforts to improve delivery methods and institute systematic improvements of the 

Salvation Army, South Mississippi AIDS Task Force, Homes of Grace, Open Doors Homeless 

Coalition, Gulf Coast Center For NonViolence, Boys and Girls Clubs, Public Housing Resident 

Councils, Stevens Center and other nonprofit agencies  to meet the housing and nonhousing 

needs of the homeless, the elderly, the physically and mentally disabled, persons living with 

HIV/AIDS and their families, and individuals with drug and alcohol addiction who reside in the 

City of Pascagoula. 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

7 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Describe coordination with the Continuum of Care and efforts to address the needs of 

homeless persons (particularly chronically homeless individuals and families, families with 

children, veterans, and unaccompanied youth) and persons at risk of homelessness. 

The City has a good working relationship with the Open Doors Homeless Coalition Continuum of Care 

and is an active participant in the multi-county, multi-agency effort to address the full continuum of care 

for the homeless on the Mississippi Gulf Coast.    

While Pascagoula is not a formula entitlement recipient under HUD’s Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), 

Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS (HOPWA) or HOME Programs, its partnership with the 

local continuum of care, the Open Doors Homeless Coalition, allows it to keep abreast of the needs of 

the homeless and chronically homeless populations in the City as well as with those at risk of becoming 

homeless.   

In addition, the City also maintains a good working relationship with experienced housing service 

providers and supports their efforts to address emergency, transitional and permanent housing needs 

by investing CDBG funds in eligible public service activities that benefit chronically homeless individuals 

and their families, families with children, veterans, unaccompanied youth and persons at risk of 

homelessness. 

In its 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, the City identified the need for additional emergency shelters, 

transitional housing units and permanent, affordable housing units.  To address this priority need, the 

City will continue to:  

 support applications for funding from local and regional homeless and housing services 

providers; 

 work with local and regional partners to identify and secure other resources needed to fully 

address the needs of the homeless; and 

 support other public agencies in their efforts to develop education and employment training 

programs for the homeless. 

In its 2016 Action Plan, the City budgeted CDBG resources to develop a Comprehensive Neighborhood 

Revitalization Strategy to improve its capacity to plan and manage housing programs and activities.  The 

strategy will be a blueprint to guide City efforts to meet the varied housing needs of Pascagoula citizens.   

Specifically, the strategy will identify eligible funding sources, application requirements and 

management recommendations to leverage funds from federal and state sources to maximize efficient 

coordination and implementation of multiple housing programs that will address residents’ short- and 

long-term affordable housing needs. 

   



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

8 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Describe consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care that serves the jurisdiction's area in 

determining how to allocate ESG funds, develop performance standards for and evaluate 

outcomes of projects and activities assisted by ESG funds, and develop funding, policies and 

procedures for the operation and administration of HMIS 

The City does not receive or administer any ESG funds, but it does provide input about the emergency 

shelter needs of the community to support the efforts of the Open Doors Homeless Coalition Continuum 

of Care, including programs and activities assisted with ESG funds. 

2. Describe Agencies, groups, organizations and others who participated in the process 

and describe the jurisdiction’s consultations with housing, social service agencies and other 

entities in Table 2 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

9 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Table 2 – Agencies, groups, organizations who participated 

1 Agency/Group/Organization Open Doors Homeless Coalition 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Elderly Persons 

Services-Persons with Disabilities 

Services-Persons with HIV/AIDS 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-homeless 

Regional organization 

What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

HOPWA Strategy 

Anti-poverty Strategy 

Lead-based Paint Strategy 

Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization 

was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the 

consultation or areas for improved coordination? 

The City met with the Executive Director to discuss current, local homeless 

needs and how best to address these needs with limited resources.  

Anticipated outcomes include a better understanding of Pascagoula's 

affordable housing needs. 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

10 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

2 Agency/Group/Organization GULF COAST WOMEN'S CENTER FOR NONVIOLENCE 

Agency/Group/Organization Type Housing 

Services - Housing 

Services-Children 

Services-Victims of Domestic Violence 

Services-homeless 

Services-Health 

Services-Education 

Services-Employment 

Service-Fair Housing 

Services - Victims 

Regional organization 

What section of the Plan was addressed by Consultation? Housing Need Assessment 

Homeless Needs - Chronically homeless 

Homeless Needs - Families with children 

Homelessness Needs - Veterans 

Homelessness Needs - Unaccompanied youth 

Homelessness Strategy 

Briefly describe how the Agency/Group/Organization 

was consulted. What are the anticipated outcomes of the 

consultation or areas for improved coordination? 

The City consulted with the Gulf Coast Center for Nonviolence via telephone 

and in writing to identify current needs of individuals in Pascagoula who are 

experiencing domestic violence.  The anticipated outcome is expanded 

emergency and transitional housing services to address these needs. 

 

Identify any Agency Types not consulted and provide rationale for not consulting 

The City is not aware of any agency types that it did not consult with; the Mississippi Regional Housing Authority VIII, social service agencies and 

other nonprofit agencies were individually invited by emailed letter to attend the public hearing and to provide input about the use of 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

11 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Pascagoula’s 2016 CDBG allocation to meet the community’s housing and nonhousing community development needs.  The public hearing and 

30-day public comment period were widely advertised to encourage input and the City did not exclude any known entity from participating in 

the planning process. 

 

Other local/regional/state/federal planning efforts considered when preparing the Plan 

Name of Plan Lead Organization How do the goals of your Strategic Plan overlap with the goals of each plan? 

Continuum of Care 
Open Doors Homeless 

Coalition 
The goals are consistent. 

Pascagoula Analysis of 

Impediments to Fair Housing 
City of Pascagoula 

The City continues its efforts to address impediments to fair housing choice to 

support affordable housing for all residents. 

Plan for Opportunity 
Gulf Regional Planning 

Commission 

The goals are consistent in terms of supporting efforts to address affordable, 

fair housing and public transportation service expansion. 

Table 3 – Other local / regional / federal planning efforts 

 

Narrative (optional) 

The City also consulted with the Mississippi Regional Housing Authority VIII in developing its 2016 Action Plan regarding existing conditions and 

needs and services provided at the public housing developments located in Pascagoula.   

 

The City of Pascagoula’s Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice and its Comprehensive Plan were considered during development of the 

2016 Action Plan.   The Plan for Opportunity, the Regional Sustainability Plan for the Mississippi Gulf Coast, was a collaborative effort 

spearheaded by the Gulf Regional Planning Commission and also was considered during planning efforts.  The City also considered the 2016 

Mississippi Annual Action Plan, made available in draft form in March 2016. 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

12 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

AP-12 Participation – 91.105, 91.200(c) 

1. Summary of citizen participation process/Efforts made to broaden citizen participation 
Summarize citizen participation process and how it impacted goal-setting 
 

The City encouraged citizen participation throughout development of its 2016 Action Plan, in compliance with its Citizen Participation Plan.  To 

encourage input from citizens, particularly low, very low and extremely low income persons, information about the 2016 Action Plan 

development process and availability of the draft was posted at City Hall, at the Community and Economic Development Department, in the 

Pascagoula Library and at public housing complexes; notices were published in the daily newspaper and posted on the City’s website and on 

Facebook.   The housing and social service agencies that provide direct services to low, very low, and extremely low income persons, the 

homeless and those with special needs were emailed the 2016 Action Plan development schedule and encouraged to share it with their clients.   

A copy of all published notices is attached to this document.  Specific steps taken by the City to broaden community input into development of 

the 2016 Action Plan include: 

 Publishing a Notice of Availability of Information as it pertains to the City of Pascagoula’s 2016 One-Year Action Plan and any 

Amendments, if applicable, to the prior program year funding. 

 Emailing letters to housing and social service agencies, and civic organizations to encourage attendance at the public hearing and to 

make them aware of the availability of information regarding the 2016 One-Year Action Plan; 

 Publishing a Notice of Public Hearing in the local paper, The Sun Herald, to invite the public to attend and provide input into 

development of the 2016 One-Year Action Plan. 

 Posting notices regarding the public hearing and availability of information about the 2016 One-Year Action Plan on the City’s website, 

as well as at City Hall, and the Pascagoula Library. 

 On June 20, 2016, conducting a public hearing to provide citizens with an opportunity to comment orally and in writing about the 

housing and non-housing community development needs of the City and about the proposed use of CDBG funds during the 2016 

Program Year; 

 Publishing a Notice of Availability of the Draft 2016 One-Year Action Plan and notified the public about the 30-day comment period. 

 Posting notices and making the Draft 2016 Action Plan available for public review and comment at City Hall, the Department of 

Community and Economic Development, and the Pascagoula Library, on the City’s website. 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

13 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

Citizen Participation Outreach 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

1 Public Hearing 

Minorities 

  

Non-English 

Speaking - Specify 

other language: 

Spanish 

  

Persons with 

disabilities 

  

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

  

Residents of Public 

and Assisted 

Housing 

Approximately 8 

people attended the 

public hearing. 

A copy of the public 

hearing minutes, 

which summarizes 

oral comments 

received, is 

attached to this 

document. 

All comments were 

considered by the City, 

but the amount of 

available CDBG funds 

was insufficient to 

meet all community 

needs identified.  The 

City allocated CDBG 

funds to address 

unmet needs 

benefiting the greatest 

number of low- to 

moderate-income 

residents possible. 

  



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

14 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

2 Newspaper Ad 

Minorities 

  

Non-English 

Speaking - Specify 

other language: 

Spanish 

  

Persons with 

disabilities 

  

Non-

targeted/broad 

community 

  

Residents of Public 

and Assisted 

Housing 

Newspaper notices 

were published to 

share information 

about availability of 

information 

regarding the CDBG 

Entitlement Program 

and 2016 Action Plan 

development 

process; to promote 

the public hearing 

and encourage 

attendance; and to 

advertise the 

availability of the 

draft document for 

public review and 

input. These 

publications resulted 

in good attendance 

at the public hearing 

and the submittal of 

written comments. 

No written or oral  

comments were 

received from the 

newspaper ad. 

NA 

 

  



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

15 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

3 Internet Outreach 

Minorities 

  

Non-English 

Speaking - Specify 

other language: 

Spanish 

  

Persons with 

disabilities 

  

Residents of Public 

and Assisted 

Housing 

The 2016 Action Plan 

development process 

was posted on the 

City's website as well 

as on its Facebook 

page. Each 

publication and the 

draft document also 

were posted on the 

City's website. 

No written or oral 

comments were 

received from the 

internet outreach. 

NA   



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

16 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Sort Order Mode of Outreach Target of Outreach Summary of  
response/attendance 

Summary of  
comments received 

Summary of comments 
not accepted 
and reasons 

URL (If 
applicable) 

4 Internet Outreach 

Regional housing 

and nonhousing 

community 

development 

agencies 

Emails were sent to 

known housing and 

non-housing 

community 

development 

agencies that provide 

services to 

Pascagoula residents 

to share information 

about the 2016 

Action Plan 

development 

process, to invite 

them to attend the 

public hearing and 

encourage their oral 

and written 

comments, and to 

promote review and 

input about the draft 

document. 

One written 

comment was 

received and it is 

attached.  

NA   

Table 4 – Citizen Participation Outreach 

 
 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

17 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Expected Resources  

AP-15 Expected Resources – 91.220(c) (1, 2) 

Introduction 

The City is defined by HUD as an Entitlement City for the CDBG Program and, as such, receives an annual allocation of CDBG funds that is 

invested to primarily benefit low- to moderate-income residents and those with special needs by addressing unmet housing and nonhousing 

community development needs through CDBG-eligible activities.  The City received a Program Year 2016 allocation of $179,527 in CDBG 

entitlement funds. 

Priority Table 

Program Source of 
Funds 

Uses of Funds Expected Amount Available Year 1 Expected 
Amount 

Available 
Reminder 
of ConPlan  

$ 

Narrative Description 
Annual 

Allocation: 
$ 

Program 
Income: $ 

Prior Year 
Resources: 

$ 

Total: 
$ 

CDBG public - 

federal 

Acquisition 

Admin and 

Planning 

Economic 

Development 

Housing 

Public 

Improvements 

Public Services $179,527 $0 $13,975 $193,502 $616,521 

Expected amount is based on 

projection in 2015-2019 

Consolidated Plan. 

Table 5 - Expected Resources – Priority Table 

 
 
 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

18 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Explain how federal funds will leverage those additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how 

matching requirements will be satisfied 

The City developed its 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan with the expectation that HUD would allocate $935,060 to it in CDBG funding over the 5-

year period of the Plan.  The City will work with local, regional and state partners to leverage limited CDBG funds to meet its housing and 

nonhousing community development needs.   However, the CDBG Entitlement Program does not require matching funds. 

If appropriate, describe publically owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that may be used to address the needs 

identified in the plan 

Not applicable 

Discussion 

The City budgeted its limited 2016 CDBG resources to improve public access to public facilities and resources; develop a comprehensive strategy 

to improve affordable housing access, housing conditions and the living environment of its low- to moderate-income residents; stimulate 

revitalization of neighborhoods and improve the living environment of low- to moderate-income residents through rehabilitation of commercial 

property; and provide eligible public services to address unmet needs.   Goals and objectives identified through the City’s 2015-2019 

Consolidated Plan and 2016 Action Plan citizen participation process are addressed through the activities funded with these resources.  

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

19 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Annual Goals and Objectives 

 

AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives - 91.420, 91.220(c)(3)&(e) 

Goals Summary Information  

No Goals Found 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

1 Assist Homeless 

With Services 

2015 2016 Homeless 

Non-Homeless 

Special Needs 

  Homeless and 

Supportive 

Services 

CDBG: 

$19,500 

Homeless Person Overnight Shelter: 

24 Persons Assisted 

Homelessness Prevention: 82 

Persons Assisted 

2 Increasing Access To 

Quality Public 

Facilities 

2015 2016 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

  Special Needs 

Populations 

Parks and  

Recreational 

Facilities 

CDBG: 

$62,502 

Public Facility or Infrastructure 

Activities other than Low/Moderate 

Income Housing Benefit: 22,392 

Persons Assisted 

3 Assist Homeless 

With Locating 

Housing 

2015 2016 Affordable 

Housing 

Homeless 

Non-Homeless 

Special Needs 

  Affordable 

Housing 

CDBG: 

$25,000 

Comprehensive Neighborhood 

Revitalization Strategy 

 Other: 22,392  

4 Economic 

Development 

2015 2016 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 Blight and Vacancy CDBG: 

$30,000 
Rehabilitation of Commercial 
Property: 400 Households 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

20 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Sort 
Order 

Goal Name Start 
Year 

End 
Year 

Category Geographic 
Area 

Needs Addressed Funding Goal Outcome Indicator 

5.  Eliminate Barriers to 

Transportation 

2015 2016 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 Lack of Public 

Transportation 

CDBG: 

$6,500 

Elderly Healthcare Patient 

Transportation: 934 trips 

6.  Neighborhood 

Revitalization 

2015 2016 Non-Housing 

Community 

Development 

 Blight and Vacancy CDBG: 

$40,000 

Gateway Mural Installation: 250 

Households 

Table 6 – Goals Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

21 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Goal 

Descriptions1 

Goal Name Assist Homeless With Services 

Goal 

Description 

In compliance with HUD’s annual 15% funding cap, 2016 Program Year funding in the total amount of 

$19,500 ($6500 for each nonprofit agency) is budgeted for three public service agencies to assist in 

providing services to Pascagoula's homeless population, as follows: 

 Gulf Coast Center for NonViolence – provision of emergency housing and related services for 

persons experiencing domestic violence at Adrienne’s House, the Center’s satellite shelter in 

Pascagoula; 

 Open Doors Homeless Coalition – provision of emergency housing and utility assistance services for 

the City’s homeless; 

 Rock Community Outreach – provision of rental and utility assistance services to address and 

prevent homelessness.  

 

2 Goal Name Increasing Access To Quality Public Facilities 

Goal 

Description 

In 2016, $$62,502 in CDBG funds are budgeted for Public Facilities and Improvements to address public 

parks and other resources that are not in compliance with ADA access requirements to benefit residents 

citywide. The location of the improvements to be funded with CDBG resources will be determined based on 

priorities identified in the Pascagoula ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan to maximize public benefit.   

   



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

22 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

3 Goal Name Assist Homeless With Locating Housing 

Goal 

Description 

Program Year funds in the amount of $25,000 are budgeted for policy-planning-management-capacity 

building activities, which will involve preparation of a comprehensive neighborhood revitalization 

strategy.  This strategy will allow the City to achieve its goal of addressing residents’ short- and long-term 

housing needs by accessing multiple funding sources for grant, loan and tax credit programs; maximizing 

efficient coordination and concurrent implementation of multiple housing activities; identifying and 

developing related housing resources; and enhancing collaboration with existing state, regional and local 

agencies and organizations.    

4 Goal Name Expanding Economic Opportunities 

 Goal 

Description 

Program year funds in the amount of $30,000 are budgeted for a Commercial Sign Removing Matching 

Grant Program. This goal addresses the need for improved living environment and revitalization of low- to 

moderate-income neighborhoods. The goal for the expenditure of public funds provide a favorable climate 

in which existing business and industry can be maintained and, if possible, expand and to help provide a 

quality life style within communities which will attract new business and industry.  

5 Goal Name Eliminate Barriers to Transportation 

 Goal 

Description 

In compliance with HUD’s annual 15% funding cap, 2016 Program Year funding in the total amount of 

$19,500 ($6500 for each nonprofit agency) is budgeted for three public service agencies to assist in 

providing transportation services to Pascagoula's elderly population, as follows: 

Public service activity to provide transportation services for elderly residents to healthcare appointments in 

Pascagoula $6,500. 

6 Goal Name Neighborhood Revitalization 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

23 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Goal 

Description 

Program year funds in the amount of $40,000 are budgeted for the Gateway Neighborhood Rebuilding & 

Revitalization Project.  Pascagoula is not unlike other parts of the nation evidenced by higher than average 

residential vacancy rates, home value depreciation and an increasing number of foreclosures. This goal will 

utilize a place-based approach to help neighborhoods in distress transform into neighborhoods of 

opportunity. 

 
 
Table 7 – Goal Descriptions 

 

Estimate the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income families to whom the jurisdiction will provide 

affordable housing as defined by HOME 91.215(b): 

The City of Pascagoula has not budgeted CDBG or other funds to provide affordable housing during Program Year 2016 as it does not receive 

HOME, ESG or HOPWA funding. 

As stated in its 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, the City will continue to assist homeless persons with emergency and transitional housing and 

related services by allocating a portion of its annual CDBG allocation to nonprofit agencies that provide CDBG-eligible public service activities.   

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

24 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

AP-35 Projects – 91.220(d) 

Introduction  

As part of the 2016 Action Plan development process, the City of Pascagoula considered all citizen input 

in terms of identifying and addressing unmet community development needs to achieve the goals 

identified in its Consolidated Plan with available CDBG resources.    

A portion of each year’s annual CDBG allocation is budgeted by the City for program administration  to 

pay some of the costs associated with implementing the Entitlement Program, including publication fees 

for CDBG-related notices and educational outreach that addresses fair housing and payday lending 

businesses.  In Program Year 2016, $10,000 is budgeted for CDBG administration activities. 

The City is in the process of amending its 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan to include housing and 

nonhousing community development goals and community priorities that more comprehensively reflect 

Pascagoula's unmet needs.  These goals and priorities were identified through the citizen participation 

process during development of the Consolidated Plan, 2015 Action Plan and 2016 Action Plan, but were 

not specifically identified.  Consequently, the IDIS templates for the 2016 Action Plan do not identify all 

of the City's goals and priorities, as indicated by the sentence "No Projects have been added to this 

Annual Action Plan" in the Projects chart that immediately follows this narrative.  

Projects for which 2016 CDBG funds are budgeted are: 

 Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy $25,000 to address the need for housing capacity building; 

assumed to benefit low/mod households per Sec. 570.200(a) 

 Commercial Sign Removal Matching Grant Program $30,000 to address nonhousing community 

development needs for improved living environment and revitalization of low/mod 

neighborhoods; an estimated 400 households will benefit 

 Gateway Neighborhood Rebuilding & Revitalization Project $40,000 to address public facilities 

and improvements other than housing; an estimated 250 households will benefit 

 ADA Public Access Improvements $62,502 to correct physical defects and make ADA 

enhancements in locations to be determined based on priorities identified in the Pascagoula 

ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan; citywide benefit 

 Public service activities to provide emergency and transitional housing to address or prevent 

homelessness; $6,500 each to Open Doors Homeless Coalition, Gulf Coast Center for 

NonViolence and Rock Community Outreach Services; 53 households estimated to benefit 

 Public service activity to provide transportation services for elderly residents to healthcare 

appointments in Pascagoula $6,500; estimated to benefit 887 persons 

The Word version of the 2016 Action Plan provides supplemental information that could not be entered 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

25 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

into the IDIS templates prior to completion of the Consolidated Plan amendment process. 

# Project Name 

1 Comprehensive Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy 

2 Commercial Sign Removal Matching Grant Program 

3 Gateway Neighborhood Rebuilding and Revitalization Project 

4 ADA Public Access Improvements 

5 Open Doors Homeless Coalition - Public Service 

6 Gulf Coast Center for Nonviolence - Public Service 

7 Rock Community Outreach - Public Service 

8 Singing River Health System - Public Services 

Table 8 – Project Information 
Describe the reasons for allocation priorities and any obstacles to addressing underserved 
needs 

To meet underserved and unmet needs identified during development of the 2016 Action Plan and 

2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, the City has allocated $26,000 in PY2016 CDBG funds for public service 

activities.  This level of support for public service activities funding complies with HUD’s annual public 

services category cap.   

The allocation of funds for eligible public service activities was determined by the City based on 

information provided in written requests submitted by nonprofit agencies and consideration of 

applicants’ past performance, professional capacity to provide the identified service, fiscal management 

experience, and program delivery achievements as they pertain to providing services to the homeless or 

to other special needs populations in the City.  The City also considered community goals and priorities 

identified in the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and the 2015 Action Plan in allocating its Program Year 

2016 CDBG funds.  

Other Program Year 2016 activities funded with CDBG resources were identified during the citizen 

participation process for development of the 2016 Action Plan and 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and 

support Pascagoula’s overarching goal of developing a viable community in which all residents, but 

especially those in low- to moderate-income households and those who have special needs, enjoy: 

 decent housing; 

 suitable living environments; and 

 expanded economic opportunities. 

As identified in its 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, the primary obstacle to addressing underserved needs 

in Pascagoula continues to be the lack of federal, state, and local resources - including CDBG Entitlement 

funds - to meet the high level of underserved needs in the community.  

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

26 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

Projects  

AP-38 Projects Summary 

Project Summary Information 

Table 9 – Project  Summary 

No Projects have been added to this Annual Action Plan 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

27 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

AP-50 Geographic Distribution – 91.220(f) 

Description of the geographic areas of the entitlement (including areas of low-income and 

minority concentration) where assistance will be directed  

As in its 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and 2015 Action Plan, the City will continue to describe goals and 

objectives in its 2016 Action Plan primarily in terms of the functional components of a well-developed 

community that creates and champions neighborhood stability, rebuilding, and growth.   

The City will continue to address its unmet housing and nonhousing community development needs 

by:  supporting improved access to affordable housing; providing housing assistance services; 

implementing activities to provide suitable living environments; and addressing unmet needs of the 

homeless and special needs populations through funded qualified public services.  

Because its needs are so great throughout the City, it does not invest its CDBG dollars according to a 

geographic distribution.   

 

Geographic Distribution 

Target Area Percentage of Funds 

Not Applicable  
Table 10 - Geographic Distribution  

 
Rationale for the priorities for allocating investments geographically  

Not applicable 

Discussion 

Not applicable 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

28 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Affordable Housing  

AP-55 Affordable Housing – 91.220(g) 

Introduction 

Providing a suitable living environment for its residents, especially those in low- to moderate-income 

households and special needs populations, is a primary goal of the City of Pascagoula, which it attempts 

to address through its limited CDBG annual allocation.  The City does not receive HOME, ESG, or HOPWA 

funding. 

In 2016, the City has budgeted a portion of its limited CDBG allocation to fund public service activities to 

help it achieve its annual goal of supporting affordable housing assistance for 17 homeless households 

and 36 nonhomeless households.  This goal will be achieved through CDBG-funded public service 

activities conducted by the Open Doors Homeless Coalition and the Gulf Coast Center for NonViolence 

to support homeless households.  Another 2016 CDBG-funded affordable housing public service activity, 

conducted by Rock Community Outreach Services, will provide rental and utility assistance to 36 low- to 

moderate-income households.  

 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households to be Supported 

Homeless 17 

Non-Homeless 36 

Special-Needs 0 

Total 53 

Table 11 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Requirement 
 

One Year Goals for the Number of Households Supported Through 

Rental Assistance 53 

The Production of New Units 0 

Rehab of Existing Units 0 

Acquisition of Existing Units 0 

Total 53 

Table 12 - One Year Goals for Affordable Housing by Support Type 
 

Discussion 

 

 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

29 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

AP-60 Public Housing – 91.220(h) 

Introduction 

The Mississippi Regional Housing Authority VIII is the local public housing agency in the City and 

administers both the public housing and Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.  Not only is it not 

identified as “troubled,”  the Mississippi Regional Housing Authority VIII is considered a “High 

Performing Public Housing Authority” that serves a variety of tenants including the elderly, disabled, 

veteran, and family populations. 

Of the 21 projects that the housing authority owns and manages, three are located in the City and 

include a total of 198 units.  The Housing Authority also administers 6,778 Section 8 housing vouchers, 

but it is not possible to identify the number of vouchers directly benefitting Pascagoula residents.   

Six Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) properties, which provide a total of 589 federally-assisted 

housing units, also are located in the city. 

 Actions planned during the next year to address the needs to public housing 

There are no plans at the present time to rehabilitate any of the public housing complexes in the City of 

Pascagoula.  The City will continue to support the Resident Councils at all three public housing 

complexes and will continue to provide residents with technical assistance regarding Section 3 training 

and employment opportunities.  The City also will continue to provide fair housing and predatory 

lending educational outreach information to public housing residents. 

 Actions to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and 

participate in homeownership 

All three public housing complexes in the City have active Resident Councils.  The City will continue to 

support efforts of the Mississippi Regional Housing Authority VIII to encourage public housing residents 

to be more involved in management and to participate in homeownership. 

 If the PHA is designated as troubled, describe the manner in which financial assistance will be 

provided or other assistance  

Not applicable 

Discussion 

 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

30 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities – 91.220(i) 

Introduction 

The City’s direct investment in affordable housing and associated services for vulnerable citizens led to 

six homeless households (eight individuals) moving from homelessness to housing in 2015.  Federal 

funding for local programs administered by local nonprofit agencies assisted in an additional six 

extremely low-income homeless households successfully maintaining housing, according to the Open 

Doors Homeless Coalition, which manages regional homeless data by city. 

During Program Year 2016, the City will continue to work with regional and local nonprofit agencies to 

address homelessness in Pascagoula.  Public service activities to support emergency and transitional 

housing and related services will be funded with a portion of Pascagoula's 2016 CDBG allocation as 

identified in AP-35 Projects. 

 

Describe the jurisdictions one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness 

including reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing 

their individual needs 

Nonprofit organizations have coordinated services to effectively end homelessness among veterans in 

the Mississippi Gulf Coast Continuum of Care that includes the City of Pascagoula.  Under the leadership 

of the Open Doors Homeless Coalition, Pascagoula and other partners will continue to collaborate to 

effectively end chronic homelessness in the City by the end of 2017 and effectively end homelessness 

among families and youth by 2020. 

Other partners in this effort include the Salvation Army, the South Mississippi AIDS Task Force, Homes of 

Grace, and the Gulf Coast Center for NonViolence, Church on the Rock, Power Ministries, Jackson 

County Community Action Agency and Catholic Social Services.   These partners provide a range of 

services that include emergency housing, transitional housing and permanent housing. 

In spite of this collaborative effort, there is a gap in available funding to support effective outreach and 

coordinated entry, which would streamline access to homeless services for Pascagoula’s most 

vulnerable citizens. 

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons 

In 2016, there are 34 shelter beds in the City of Pascagoula primarily for single adults.  The existing 

shelter would be more effective, according to homeless service providers, if renovated to include space 

for families with children needing shelter. 

Through the CDBG public service category, the City of Pascagoula provides funding to experienced 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

31 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

homeless and special needs population service organizations that provide emergency shelters and 

transitional housing for individuals and their families.  Once homeless or special needs populations are 

housed, supportive service providers work to address physical and mental needs, such as food and 

clothing. 

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families 

with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to 

permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that 

individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals 

and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were 

recently homeless from becoming homeless again 

The City will continue to seek additional resources to meet the housing needs of homeless persons, 

especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their 

families, and unaccompanied youth.   

The City also will continue to support the efforts of homeless service providers to help homeless 

individuals and their families maintain housing, employment, mental, and physical health.  Pascagoula 

will continue to be an active partner with the Open Doors Homeless Coalition in its efforts to obtain and 

maintain data to document the extent of homelessness in the City of Pascagoula. 

The City will continue its public educational outreach to homeless and special needs populations 

regarding fair housing, and predatory lending. 

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely 

low-income individuals and families and those who are: being discharged from publicly 

funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, 

foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); or, receiving 

assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, 

employment, education, or youth needs. 

The City will continue to support efforts of housing and supportive service providers to obtain federal 

and state funding for the continuation and expansion of services and facilities to bridge the gap that 

exists in fully addressing the needs of the homeless and to prevent homelessness.    

To help low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-income 

individuals and families who are likely to become homeless after being discharged from a publicly 

funded institution or system of care, or who are receiving assistance from public and private agencies 

that address housing, health, social services, employment, education or youth needs, the City of 

Pascagoula will continue to support nonprofit agencies’ applications for funding to continue and expand 

programs and facilities to meet the needs of these vulnerable populations.  Agencies such as the South 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

32 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Mississippi AIDS Task Force, South Mississippi Regional Center, LIFE, Gulf Coast Mental Health and the 

Mental Health Association of Mississippi will continue to be supported. 

Discussion 

By working collaboratively with regional and local nonprofit agencies and organizations, the City of 

Pascagoula maximizes the effective and efficient use of its limited CDBG resources to address the needs 

of the homeless.  

One year goals for the number of households to be provided housing through the use of HOPWA 
for: 

Short-term rent, mortgage, and utility assistance to prevent homelessness of the 
individual or family 

0 

Tenant-based rental assistance 0 

Units provided in housing facilities (transitional or permanent) that are being 
developed, leased, or operated 

0 

Units provided in transitional short-term housing facilities developed, leased, or 
operated with HOPWA funds 

0 

Total 0 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

33 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

AP-75 Barriers to affordable housing – 91.220(j) 

Introduction 

Pascagoula’s 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and 2015 Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 

identify the need for additional federal funding to support development of affordable housing located in 

various neighborhoods throughout the City rather than clustering it in low-income and racially 

concentrated areas.   The Comprehensive Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy to be funded with 2016 

CDBG resources will improve the capacity of City staff to fund, coordinate and implement a diverse 

housing program that addresses the needs of tenants and homeowners to access and maintain 

affordable housing in a location of their choice.    

The City will continue to implement its fair housing and predatory lending public education outreach 

efforts and will support grant applications of local nonprofit agencies to access:  

 local housing rehabilitation loan, grant and tax credit programs; 

 emergency shelter and transitional housing services and programs; and 

 various programs to expand homebuyer education programs; to assist first-time homebuyers 

with down payment assistance; and to provide funding assistance for rental rehabilitation. 

Actions it planned to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve 

as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning 

ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the 

return on residential investment 

The City is committed to implementing the following policies as a way of ensuring there are no public 

policy barriers to affordable housing in Pascagoula:   

 The City will continue to support the Mississippi Development Authority and the Mississippi 

HOME Corporation in the mission to provide residents with down payment assistance and 

homebuyer education. 

 The City will work with developers to build affordable workforce development housing units. 

 The City will continue to support efforts of the Mississippi Regional Housing Authority VIII to 

improve the three public housing complexes located in the City. 

 The City will continue to support nonprofit agencies and organizations which provide 

weatherization and LIHEAP support to Pascagoula residents. 

 The City will continue to take actions to eliminate the impediments identified in its 2015 

Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice and will maintain records documenting actions 

taken. 

 Discussion 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

34 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

AP-85 Other Actions – 91.220(k) 

Introduction 

To meet other housing and nonhousing community development needs identified during development 

of the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and the 2016 Action Plan, the City budgeted $26,000 of its 2016 

CDBG allocation for public services.  Each of the following four nonprofit organizations will receive 

$6,500 to support the following public service activities. 

 Gulf Coast Center for Nonviolence will assist homeless persons, specifically individuals 

experiencing domestic violence, through emergency housing and related services; 

 Open Doors Homeless Coalition will assist homeless persons through emergency housing 

services; 

 Rock Community Outreach will help prevent homelessness by assisting low- to moderate-

income persons with rental and utility assistance; and 

 Singing River Health System will provide transportation services to local healthcare 

appointments to qualified elderly residents. 

Actions planned to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs 

The City of Pascagoula will continue to facilitate development of a regional social service collaborative to 

meet underserved needs.  This collaborative will: 

 coordinate the schedules and service delivery of local and regional organizations; 

 share limited resources and information; 

 reduce or eliminate duplication of efforts; and 

 implement community-wide solutions to address local and regional needs. 

Actions planned to foster and maintain affordable housing 

The City will continue to invest CDBG public service funds to support experienced nonprofit agencies in 

moving homeless individuals and their families from shelters to transitional and permanent 

housing.  The City will continue to work with local and regional housing agencies to pursue a 

comprehensive array of residential loan, grant and tax credit resources as part of its comprehensive 

efforts to meet the affordable housing needs of Pascagoula residents. 

 Actions planned to reduce lead-based paint hazards 

During the 2016 Program Year, the City will continue to work with the Mississippi Regional Housing 

Authority VIII and other housing providers in the City to reduce lead-based paint hazards in housing 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

35 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

units.   

 The City will continue to require that substantial rehabilitation of housing units in the City, 

particularly if CDBG funds are invested in the project, test for lead-based paint and abate it, if 

necessary, in compliance with EPA regulations. 

 The Mississippi Regional Housing Authority VIII will continue its home inspection program 

requiring owners of housing units inspected for Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 

eligibility scrape and repaint any surface areas where paint is chipping or peeling.  

 The Housing Authority also will continue its lead-based paint hazard educational program by 

providing educational information to Section 8 families with children aged 6 years and younger 

living in public housing. 

Actions planned to reduce the number of poverty-level families 

The City of Pascagoula has the following programs and policies in place to reduce the number of 

poverty-level families: 

 The City will continue to invest CDBG resources to revitalize, rebuild and redevelop deteriorating 

neighborhoods where property is not being consistently maintained in compliance with local 

codes, and especially in neighborhoods where a majority of residents are low- to moderate-

income. 

 The City will pro-actively promote and encourage economic development and redevelopment in 

areas throughout the City. 

 The City will continue to recruit new businesses and support expanded job opportunities for 

residents. 

 The City will continue to work with housing developers to expand and diversify local affordable 

housing options. 

 The City will maintain public street improvements (such as curbs, gutters and sidewalks) in 

accordance with its infrastructure maintenance policy. 

 The City will support efforts to expand affordable child care services (both day care and after 

hour care) to allow parents of young children to maintain employment. 

 The City will continue to support efforts to expand public transportation services to improve 

residents’ access to employment, education and training opportunities. 

 Actions planned to develop institutional structure  

Below are strategies to develop Pascagoula’s institutional structure identified in its 2015-2019 

Consolidated Plan, which the City will continue to use and build upon: 

 Improve coordination and communication between public and private sector agencies to avoid 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

36 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

duplication of efforts; 

 Support efforts by the Mississippi Regional Housing Authority VIII and other housing 

organizations to expand the inventory of affordable housing for the elderly through HUD 

Programs and other public/private resources. 

 Continue to support the efforts of the Salvation Army, South Mississippi AIDS Task Force, Homes 

of Grace, Open Doors Homeless Coalition, Gulf Coast Center for NonViolence, Boys and Girls 

Clubs, Public Housing Resident Councils, Stevens Center and others in their work to address the 

unmet needs of the homeless, the elderly, the physically and mentally disabled, persons with 

HIV/AIDS and their families, and the drug and alcohol addicted individuals who live in the City of 

Pascagoula. 

 Support efforts to meet the public transportation needs of Pascagoula residents, especially of 

residents who are unable to access social services critical to their overall health and wellbeing. 

 Continue to support on-going efforts of local and regional housing and service agencies to 

address the full continuum of care for Pascagoula residents. 

 Continue to adhere to its Citizen Participation Plan so that the City may benefit from diverse 

input that fully reflects the opinions of its residents so local needs may be identified 

comprehensively and appropriately prioritized. 

 Continue to conduct an annual mailout to local and regional housing and community service 

agencies to encourage participation in developing and implementing Pascagoula’s Consolidated 

and Annual Action Plans.  

 Actions planned to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social 

service agencies 

The City has significantly increased its efforts to coordinate development of a regional housing and 

community services collaborative that will coordinate the work of both local and regional social service 

agencies.  The City recognizes that improved service coordination will help eliminate duplication of 

efforts, maximize the effective use of limited public resources, improve communication and education 

about “best practices”, and identify community-wide solutions to meet basic housing and community 

needs. 

The City will continue to participate as an active member in the Open Doors Homeless Coalition 

Continuum of Care and to adhere to its Citizen Participation Plan.   

 Discussion 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

37 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Program Specific Requirements 

AP-90 Program Specific Requirements – 91.220(l)(1,2,4) 

Introduction 

The City invests its CDBG funds to provide public services to address unmet community needs; to 

provide its residents with suitable living environments; and to expand economic opportunities, 

particularly for those residing in low- to moderate-income households or who have special needs.    

Not less than 70% of the city’s CDBG allocation is used for low to moderate-income individuals and their 

families and each of the activities meets at least one of the National objectives for the CDBG program. 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG)  
Reference 24 CFR 91.220(l)(1)  

Projects planned with all CDBG funds expected to be available during the year are identified in the 
Projects Table. The following identifies program income that is available for use that is included in 
projects to be carried out.  
 

 
1. The total amount of program income that will have been received before the start of the next 

program year and that has not yet been reprogrammed 0 

2. The amount of proceeds from section 108 loan guarantees that will be used during the year to 

address the priority needs and specific objectives identified in the grantee's strategic plan. 0 

3. The amount of surplus funds from urban renewal settlements 0 

4. The amount of any grant funds returned to the line of credit for which the planned use has not 

been included in a prior statement or plan 0 

5. The amount of income from float-funded activities 0 

Total Program Income: 0 

Other CDBG Requirements  
 
1. The amount of urgent need activities 0 

  
2. The estimated percentage of CDBG funds that will be used for activities that 

benefit persons of low and moderate income.Overall Benefit - A consecutive period 

of one, two or three years may be used to determine that a minimum overall 

benefit of 70% of CDBG funds is used to benefit persons of low and moderate 

income. Specify the years covered that include this Annual Action Plan:  2014, 2015, 

2016 82.46% 

 
 

Discussion 

The City’s 2016 Action Plan covers the consecutive three-year program period of 2014, 2015 and 2016.  



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

38 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

ATTACHMENTS 

HUD Program Year 2016 Allocation Letter 

Citizen Participation 

Maps 

 

  



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

39 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

40 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

  



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

41 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 
  



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

42 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 
  



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

43 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

44 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

45 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

City of Pascagoula 

2016 CDBG Action Plan Public Hearing Minutes 
5:30 p.m., Monday, June 20, 2016 

 
The City of Pascagoula conducted a public hearing in the Council Chambers of City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on 
Monday, June 20, 2016 to present information about development of the 2016 One-Year Action Plan for 
its CDBG Entitlement Program and to provide citizens with an opportunity to ask questions and 
comment orally and in writing about the community’s unmet housing and non-housing community 
development needs and priorities.   A copy of the sign-in sheet, agenda and handouts distributed at the 
hearing follow these minutes. 
 
Grace Aaron, consultant for the City of Pascagoula, opened the hearing by introducing herself and Aleta 
Raley, with the Pascagoula Department of Community and Economic Development.   Mrs. Raley 
explained that a family emergency prevented Jen Dearman, Director, from attending the hearing as 
planned.  They welcomed those present, asked that each person sign the sign-in sheet and distributed 
the agenda and handouts. 
 
Ms Aaron presented an overview of the HUD-funded CDBG Program, referring to the Fact Sheet 
handout as she identified the national objectives, provided examples of eligible activities and indicated 
where more detailed CDBG Program information, including the Citizen Participation Plan, is available for 
public review at the City.  She explained the purpose of the One-Year CDBG Action Plan in context of 
Pascagoula’s 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and called attention to the development schedule summary 
on page 3 of the handout.   
 
The Program Year 2016 CDBG allocation, carry over of previous years’ funds and proposed activity 
expenses were then reviewed by Ms Aaron and also are detailed on page 3 of the handout.  Ms Aaron 
stated that the draft 2016 Action Plan will be available for a 30-day public review period, beginning June 
27 and ending July 29, at the locations listed in the handout.  She encouraged those present to provide 
oral and written input about the City’s proposed use of 2016 CDBG funds, the Draft Action Plan and 
unmet housing and non-housing community development needs and priorities of the community. 
 
During the presentation of the CDBG Entitlement Program and 2016 Action Plan information, questions 
were asked and answered about HUD’s annual 15% cap on public service activities; what national 
objectives are being met by the activities proposed to be funded through the PY2016 allocation; the 
purpose of the Comprehensive Housing Strategy; the Singing River Health System public service to be 
provided; the Emergency Shelter Grant Program; and whether the City of Pascagoula is using any CDBG 
funds for residential slab removal. 
 
Following the presentation, Ms Aaron invited those present to ask additional questions and provide 
input.  The following comments were made: 
 

 The annual 15% cap on public service activities is restrictive and low considering the needs of 
the community. 

 There don’t seem to be enough HUD funds made available to achieve national objectives or 
local goals. 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

46 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 The City should build another park or expand funding for ADA improvements instead of 
implementing the commercial sign removal matching grant program with CDBG funds. 

 Public services should not be provided to nonlegal residents, especially food services. 

 There is need for a public healthcare clinic in Pascagoula and Coastal Family Health is interested 
in working with the City to develop one; they have operating funds, but need an appropriate 
facility. 

 Code violations need to be addressed by the City so that the burden of compliance is on private 
property owners rather than the public; public funds shouldn’t be used to improve private 
property. 

 The community needs improved access to affordable housing through assistance for first 
month’s rent and security and utility deposits. 

 The proposed mural activity to stimulate neighborhood revitalization and improve residents’ 
living environment makes more sense than the proposed sign program. 

 The Singing River Health System is a steward of grant funds, maximizing benefits to help people.  
The community has real needs other than aesthetic issues.  

 Rehabilitation of existing housing stock is needed, both owner-occupied and rental property. 
 
Mrs. Raley indicated that public input provided orally and in writing really helps the City identify 
priorities for use of the limited CDBG funds each year.  Ms Aaron encouraged those present to provide 
additional comments in writing to the City during the 30-day comment period.  She indicated that input 
provided during the public hearing will be considered by the City as it prepares the Final 2016 Action 
Plan; the minutes will summarize comments made at the public hearing and also will be included in the 
Action Plan.    
 
There being no further questions or comments, the hearing was closed at approximately 6:20 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

47 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 
City of Pascagoula 

2016 CDBG Action Plan  
5:30 p.m. - Monday, June 20, 2016  

 
I.   Welcome and Introductions  
 
II. Overview of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 
 a.  National Objectives 

b.  Eligible Activities 
 c.  Compliance with Pascagoula’s 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan 
 
III. FY2016 Action Plan  
 a.  Development Schedule Summary 
 b.  Availability of 2016 One-Year Action Plan Draft 
 c.  2016 Program Year CDBG Funds  
 d.  Proposed 2016 Program Year Activities 
 
V. Citizen Input 

  
Oral and written comments you have concerning the housing and non-housing 
community development needs of the City of Pascagoula are valued and will be 
considered in development of the 2016 Action Plan.   
 
To comply with HUD’s deadline for Action Plan submittal, written comments must be 
received by the City before 4 p.m. on Friday, July 29, 2016.  A comment sheet is 
provided as a service; comments are not restricted to space available on the form. 
 
Written comments may be delivered or mailed to the Pascagoula Department of  
Community and Economic Development, 630 Delmas Avenue Pascagoula, MS 39568;  
Faxed to (228) 938-6637, Attention: Beth Meyer, Grants Administrator; or emailed to 
bmeyer@cityofpascagoula.com.   

 

 

 

mailto:bmeyer@cityofpascagoula.com


 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

48 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

VI.   Conclusion 

 

City of Pascagoula 

Community Development Block Grant Fact Sheet 

 
Summary 
The 2016 One-Year Action Plan is a requirement of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) that is designed to develop a coordinated and cooperative effort to 
identify and address housing, community development and supportive housing needs of the 
City of Pascagoula.  The One-Year Action Plan is based on prioritized needs and strategies for 
meeting those needs identified in the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan. 
 
Both the Action Plan and Consolidated Plan are designed by HUD to consolidate the planning 
and application requirements for four HUD Community Planning and Development formula 
grant programs: 
 1.  The Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) 
 2.  Home Investment Partnerships (HOME) 
 3.  Housing Opportunities for People With AIDS (HOPWA) 
 4.  Emergency Shelter Grants (ESG) 
 
The three broad goals of the four HUD Community Planning and Development programs are: 
 1.  To provide decent housing; 
 2.  To provide a suitable living environment; and 
 3.  To expand economic opportunities. 
 
Pascagoula is not an entitlement city and does not receive an annual allocation of funds under 
the HOPWA, ESG or HOME programs but must work with other agencies to compete for 
funding from the programs.   
 
However, Pascagoula is an entitlement city under the rules of HUD’s CDBG Program and 
receives an annual allocation of CDBG funding, which in Program Year 2016 is $179,527.  During 
2016, the City does not anticipate generating any program income, but currently has 
unallocated CDBG resources in the amount of $20,575. 
 
National Objectives of Community Development Block Grant Program 
The CDBG Program has three national objectives and CDBG-funded projects or activities must 
meet at least one of the objectives for use of these federal funds: 

1.  Principally benefit low- and moderate-income persons; 
2.  Prevent or eliminate slums or blight; and 
3.  Meet a need having a particular urgency. 

 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

49 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Availability of Information 
Information concerning the Action Plan, the Consolidated Plan and the Community 
Development Block Grant Program is available for public review at the Pascagoula Department 
of Community and Economic Development, located at 630 Delmas Avenue, between the hours 
of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 
 
Examples of Basic Eligible Activities for the CDBG Program 
1. Acquisition of property for a public purpose 
2. Public facilities and improvements including streets, curbs, sidewalks, water and 

wastewater improvements 
3. Urgent needs and emergency grants to address community development needs having a 

particular urgency because existing conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to 
the health or welfare of the community. 

4. Interim assistance requiring immediate action such as street improvements and to 
alleviate emergency conditions 

5. Relocation payment and assistance for permanently or temporarily displaced 
individuals, families, businesses and organizations, and reimbursement for loss of rental 
income incurred in holding housing units to be utilized by relocation of individuals and 
families displaced by program activities 

6. Public services including employment services, fair housing counseling, healthcare and 
substance abuse services, services for victims of domestic violence, the homeless and 
qualified elderly residents (this activity is capped by HUD at 15% of the annual allocation 
plus 15% of program income received during the prior program year) 

7. Special economic development activities 
8. Planning and administration (this activity is capped at 20% of the sum of the annual 

allocation plus the program income received during that program year) 
 
Examples of Eligible Rehabilitation Activities for the CDBG Program 
1. Publicly or privately owned commercial or industrial buildings, except that the 

rehabilitation of buildings owned by a private, for-profit business is limited to 
improvement to the exterior of the property 

2. Publicly owned residential buildings and improvements 

 

 

  



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

50 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Overview of Pascagoula’s 2016 One-Year Action Plan  
 
1.  Development Schedule Summary  
 Public Hearing      June 20, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. 
 2016 One-Year Action Plan Draft Available   June 27, 2016 
 30-Day Public Comment Period Ends   July 29, 2016 at 5:00 p.m.  
 City Council Approval/Adoption    August 2, 2016  
 Submit to HUD      August 15, 2016 
 

2.  Availability of 2016 One-Year Action Plan Draft 
 The Draft Action Plan will be available on June 27, 2016 for public review at: 
 Pascagoula City Hall, 603 Watts Avenue 
 Department of Community and Economic Development, 630 Delmas Avenue  
 Pascagoula Public Library, 3214 Pascagoula Street  
 City of Pascagoula website:  cityofpascagoula.com   
  
3.  2016 Program Year CDBG Funds  
 2016 Entitlement Allocation     $179,527 
 Currently Unallocated      $   20,575             
       Total  $200,102 
  
4.  Proposed FY2016 Program Year Activities 

Comprehensive Housing Strategy      $  25,000 
Commercial Sign Removal Matching Grant Program  $  30,000 
Gateway Mural Neighborhood Revitalization Project  $  40,102 
ADA Public Access Improvements    $  69,000*  
Public Services        
 Gulf Coast Women’s Center for NonViolence  $    6,500 
 Open Doors Homeless Coalition    $    6,500 

Rock Community Outreach    $    6,500 
 Singing River Health System     $    6,500 
Administration       $  10,000 
  Proposed 2016 Action Plan Expenditures $200,102 
 
*Identified in the Pascagoula ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan 

 
5.  Citizen Input 

Oral comments pertaining to the housing and community development needs and priorities of 

the City of Pascagoula are welcomed and encouraged at the June 20, 2016 public hearing.  To 
be considered in development of Pascagoula’s 2016 One-Year Action Plan, written 
comments must be received by 4 p.m. on Friday, July 29, 2016.  A comment sheet is 
provided as a service; comments are not restricted to space available on the form. 

 
Written comments may be delivered or mailed to the Pascagoula Department of 
Community and Economic Development, 630 Delmas Avenue Pascagoula, MS 39568; 



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

51 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

Faxed to (228) 938-6637, Attention: Beth Meyer, Grants Administrator; or emailed to 
bmeyer@cityofpascagoula.com.   

 

mailto:bmeyer@cityofpascagoula.com


 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

52 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 
 

The City of Pascagoula’s Proposed 2016 CDBG Projects Map 

The proposed 2016 ADA Access Improvements Project and Public Service Activities provide citywide 

rater then project area benefit and therefore are not identified on this map. 

 

  



 Annual Action Plan 
2016 

53 

OMB Control No: 2506-0117 (exp. 07/31/2015) 

 

 

 



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date: August 2, 2016   
 
Submitting Department or Individual: Parks & Recreation Department  
 
Contact Name: Darcie Crew  Phone: 228-938-2356 
 
 
Agenda Topic: Parks & Recreation Fee Schedule 
Attach additional information as necessary 
 
Action Requested:  
Accept and approve the Parks and Recreation Fee Schedule as attached. 
 
Budgeted Item Yes  No  Source of Funding  General Fund 
 

Contract Required Yes  No    Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required Yes  No    Grant 
 

       Other 
 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 12



PASCAGOULA PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
FEE SCHEDULE  

 
ACTIVITY  PASCAGOULA 

RESIDENT 
NON- RESIDENT 

Youth Basketball $60.00 $90.00 
Youth Football $80.00 $120.00 

Youth Cheerleading $100.00 $150.00 
Flag Football $50.00 $75.00 

Summer & Holiday Day Camp $85.00 per week $105.00 per week 
After School Program $40.00 per week $50.00 per week 
Counselor in Training $350.00 per summer $440.00 per summer 

Program Registration Fee $2.00 $2.00 
Athletic League Registration Fee $4.00 $4.00 

Senior Center Membership Free $50.00 per year 
Instructional Classes 75% Instructor costs 75% Instructor costs 
Swimming Lessons $35.00 per class $45.00 per class 

Pool Admission-Child $2.00 per day $2.50 per day 
Pool Admission-Adult $2.50 per day $3.50 per day 
Pool Admission-Group $1.00 per person $1.50 per person 

Pool Admission- 
Boys & Girls Club 

 
$1.00 per person 

 
$1.50 per person 

Pascagoula & AJ Rec. Center  
Admission 

$1.00 per person 
 

$1.00 per person 

Scranton Nature Center, 
Museum & Lighthouse Admission 

$2 adults 
$1 children/groups 

$2 adults 
$1 children/groups 

Pavilion Rental  $10.00 per hour $20.00 per hour  
Field Rental Per hour rates 

per agreement 
Per hour rates 
per agreement 

Family Camp Out $5 each ages 4+ $5 each ages 4+ 
Nature Camp $80.00 per week $100.00 per week 

Outdoor Adventure Camp $120.00 per week $150.00 per week 
Haunted House $5.00 per person $5.00 per person 

Lock-Ins $25 per person $30 per person 
Camp Special Forces $50 per person $60 per person 

 
The above rates are for existing programs.  Any additional programs offered will need to be added to 
this listing on an as needed basis.   

 
If you have any questions please feel free to call the Pascagoula Parks & Recreation Department at 
228-938-2356. 
 
        (Effective September 1, 2016) 



cwarren
Typewritten Text
13





cwarren
Typewritten Text
14







       



cwarren
Typewritten Text
15









Agenda Number:  

8/2/2016

Police Department

Kenny Johnson 762-2211

Motorcycle Lease Extension Agreement

Council approval to extend the current Motorcycle Lease Agreement with Bruce Rossmeyer’s
Daytona Harley-Davidson of Ormond Beach, FL, under the same terms an conditions for
twenty-four (24) months at $425.00 per bike per month for five (5) 2017 FLHTP Electra Glide
police motorcycles. The contract dates will be December 1, 2016 through November 30, 2018.
Concurrence from the vendor is attached.

✔

cwarren
Typewritten Text
16







       



Agenda Number:  

August 2, 2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Historic Preservation Commission Meeting Minutes - June 22, 2016

Acknowledge minutes as presented.

cwarren
Typewritten Text
17



Meeting Minutes  

Historic Preservation Commission  

Date: Wednesday, June 22, 2016 

Location: La Pointe-Krebs Museum, 4602 Fort Street, Pascagoula, MS 39567 

 

Commission members present: Michele Lee, Michele Coats, Walter Mansfield, Liz Ford, Barry McIlwain, 

Kevin Hall, Marcia Baumhauer, and Carl Megehee 

Commission members excused: Tommy Wixon 

Visitors: Braxton Miller, Joseph Halthon, JaAlexis Lewis, Brandon Willis, and James Foundren 

 

The meeting was called to order at 12:00 PM by Commission Chairwoman, Liz Ford, after a delicious 

lunch provided by Walter Mansfield that was enjoyed by all. A quorum was determined. The 

Commission unanimously approved the May 25, 2016, meeting minutes on a motion by Michele Lee and 

second by Michele Coats.  

 

Old Business 

 709 Live Oak Avenue 
o Work is progressing on the house. 

 Century Homes Program 
 There are three plaques remaining for which homes need to be identified. 

 Michele Lee said Doug Hague was very interested in nominating his 
mother’s house, 707 Mill Street. 

Projects Update 

 La Pointe-Krebs (LP-K) House and L-PK Foundation 
o The Museum ribbon cutting is scheduled for July 1, 2016. 
o The University of Southern Mississippi dendrochronology report revealed the 

center room was built in the fall of 1757. 
New Business 

 Greenwood Cemetery Tour 
o Michele Lee reported she and Dan are working on some of the issues at 

Greenwood Cemetery.   
o The July 27, 2016, meeting will begin discussions for the event, and Liz will 

contact those who have played a role in previous tours to attend the meeting. 

 Griffin Cemetery Tour 
o The event organizers requested permission to use the directional signs for their 

tour in early October. 

 Market Street  
o The proposed improvements were discussed. 

 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:10 PM. 
 

Next Meeting Date – July 27, 2016 

Notes taken by Liz Ford 



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date: 8/2/16   

 
Submitting Department or Individual: Ravin Floyd/Public Relations 

Specialist  

 
Contact Name: Ravin Floyd  Phone: 228.334.2482 

 

 

Agenda Topic: City of Pascagoula Flagship Citizen's Award 
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:  

      

 
Budgeted Item Yes  No  Source of Funding  General Fund 
 

Contract Required Yes  No    Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required Yes  No    Grant 
 

       Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 18



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   

  

Flagship Award 
Citizen Recognition Program 

 

The City of Pascagoula has established the Flagship Award citizen recognition program to 
acknowledge and honor those citizens whose efforts and achievements help make Pascagoula 
a great place to live, work and play!  The Pascagoula City Council believes it is important to 
express gratitude and appreciation for those citizens who demonstrate commitment and 
leadership through extraordinary accomplishments to the betterment of our community.  

Citizens will be nominated by members of the City Council and will be accepted on a 
monthly basis. Nominations will be included on the agenda for the first meeting of the month. 
The winner of The Flagship Award will be announced biannually.  The recipient of The 
Flagship Award will be selected by the Pascagoula City Council from a pool of the 
nominations made during the previous six-month period. 

CRITERIA AND NOMINATIONS 

Anyone can make a recommendation to the City Council to nominate an individual for the 
Flagship Award. To qualify for this recognition award, the nominee must be a Pascagoula 
resident and should display or meet the following criteria. 

·         Strive to make a positive impact in the community 

·         Enhance the Pascagoula community and the lives of its citizens 

·         Address or fulfill a community need or concern 

Recommendations should be mailed to Pascagoula City Hall, PO Drawer 908, Pascagoula, 
MS, 39568; dropped off at Pascagoula City Hall at 603 Watts Avenue, Pascagoula, MS, 
39567; or emailed to rfloyd@cityofpascagoula.com. It is important that you provide as much 
information as possible about the citizen, and explain their contribution and impact. Please 
feel free to send examples of the nominee’s work (e.g. videos, photographs, etc.). Note that all 
application materials will remain property of the City of Pascagoula and will not be returned. 

HARRY J. BLEVINS 
 MAYOR  

 
 

JOSEPH R. HUFFMAN 
 CITY MANAGER 

 
 

EDDIE C. WILLIAMS 
 CITY ATTORNEY 

CITY COUNCIL    
 

MARVIN PICKETT, SR. Councilman, Ward 1 

FREDDY JACKSON           Councilman, Ward 2 

DAVID TADLOCK            Councilman, Ward 3 

BURT HILL                             Councilman, Ward 4 

SCOTT TIPTON                     Councilman, Ward 5 

BRENDA H. SIMKINS        Councilwoman at Large 
 
 

603 WATTS AVE. • P.O. DRAWER 908 
PASCAGOULA, MS 39568-0908 • TELEPHONE 228-938-6605   

FAX 228-372-6851   
 

mailto:rfloyd@cityofpascagoula.com


RECOGNITION 

 
Recipients will be announced and honored at the first City Council meeting in November and 
the first City Council meeting in May. At this time the award recipient will receive a 
proclamation of outstanding citizenship from the Mayor and Council, along with a small 
engraved plaque dedicated to the award winner. In addition, the recipient will be extended an 
invitation to participate in various City events. Each nominee will be recognized at the 
Council meeting and will be awarded a city coin. 

The recipient and nominees will be notified one month prior to the meeting in which 
nominees are presented.   

 



       



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date:  August 2, 2016     

 
Submitting Department or Individual:  Parks & Recreation Dept.   

 
Contact Name:  Darcie Crew    Phone:  228‐938‐2356 

 

 

Agenda Topic:  Recreation Commission Appointment
Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:   

Appoint new member of the Recreation Commission. See applications attached.   

 
Budgeted Item  Yes    No    Source of Funding    General Fund 
 

Contract Required  Yes    No        Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required  Yes    No        Grant 
 

              Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 19





CURRICULUM VITAE 
 

Joseph J. Davis 
1304 Gallery Street 

Pascagoula, MS 39581 
228-990-7233 

alljs@cableone.net 
 

PERSONAL DATA 
 

Born July 20, 1959, Pascagoula, MS 
Married 20 years to Janetic Winborn Davis 
Two Daughters Jariel 18 and  Jazmine 16 

 
EDUCATION 

 
Pascagoula High School 1977 Diploma 

Tougaloo College 1982 B.S. Health, Physical Education & Recreation 
U.S. Sports Academy 1983 M.S. Sports Medicine 

 
WORK EXPERIENCE 

 
2004- Present Encore Rehabilitation, Certified Athletic Trainer; 

 Pascagoula, MS 
1999- 2004 Singing River Hospital System Sports Medicine Coordinator; 

Pascagoula, MS 
1996- 1999 Healthsouth rehabilitation, Sports Medicine Coordinator; 

Pascagoula, MS 
1991- 1996 Tuskegee University Head Athletic Trainer; 

 Tuskegee, Al 
1986-1991 Stickle Physical Therapy Sports Medicine Outreach; 

 Pascagoula, MS 
1983- 1986 U.S. Sports Academy Sports Medicine Coordinator; 

 Tabuk, Saudia Arabia 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 OTHER EXPERIENCES 
   

Intern Wofford College/Green Bay Packers 1982 
Sheboygan, WI 

Athletic Trainer USIA Pre-Olympic Training Camps 1984 
Harare, Zimbabwe Lusaka, Zambia Lagos, Nigeria 

Athletic Trainer Los Angeles Olympics 1984 
Athletic Trainer Goodwill Games 1990 

 
Professional Organizations 

 
National Athletic Trainers Association 

American Heart Association 
American Red Cross 

Mississippi State Board of Contractors 
Kappa Alpha Psi Fraternity Inc. 

 
Community Service 

 
Scout Master Troop 430 

Mentor Jackson County Boys and Girls Club 
Pascagoula Civil Service Board 2000-2010 

Jackson County Civic Action Board 1997- 1999 
 

References 
 

Dr. James A. Andrews, M.D. Alabama Sports Medicine Birmingham, Al 
205-581-7115 

Larry G. Hawkins, Pastor Union Baptist Church Pascagoula, MS 
228218-3042 

Mr. Doug Bates, Director Encore Rehabilitation Ocean Springs, MS  
228-818-1200 

 



For grants and contracts, attach two (2) originals for Mayor or Manager’s signature 
For ordinances, resolutions, or other correspondence, attach one (1) original for Mayor or Manager’s signature 

 
NOTE: ALL AGENDA REQUESTS MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE WITH 

ALL ATTACHMENTS NO LATER THAN 2PM ON THE WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

 
Meeting Date:  August 2, 2016     

 
Submitting Department or Individual:  City Attorney   

 
Contact Name:  Eddie C. Williams    Phone:  938‐6605 

 

 

Agenda Topic:  Appointment of a New Election Commissioner . Mike Murphy 
resigned  his position effective immediatley. 

Attach additional information as necessary 

 
Action Requested:   

Appoint new Election Commissioner 

 
Budgeted Item  Yes    No    Source of Funding    General Fund 
 

Contract Required  Yes    No        Utility Fund 
 

Mayor or Manager’s Signature Required  Yes    No        Grant 
 

              Other 

 

cwarren
Typewritten Text
Agenda Number: 20



       



Agenda Number:  

08-02-2016

Community and Economic Development

Jen Dearman 228-938-6651

Central Business District Residential Tax Exemption Policy

Approve the Residential Central Business District Tax Exemption Information Packet.

cwarren
Typewritten Text
21



 

Central Business District 
Residential Tax Exemption 

Information 

 

 

 
 

 

2016 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

Pascagoula Central Business District Residential Tax Exemption: 

Utilizing Miss. Code Ann. 27.31.31, the Pascagoula Central Business District (CBD) Residential 
Tax Exemption Policy was established to promote private investment and economic growth 
within the City of Pascagoula.  The Exemption will allow for up to an 100% exemption of 
municipal ad valorem taxes (excluding School Taxes) for up to ten (10) years for residential 
developments including new structures and improvements to existing structures located within 
the CBD.  The exemption is for the increase in City ad valorem taxes caused by the new 
construction or renovation of existing structures. 

 
Residential Tax Exemption Facts: 

 The tax exemption may be granted for up to 100% and may last up to ten (10) years. 

 The residence must be located within the boundaries of the CBD.  City staff can assist 
you in making this determination.   See Exhibit A for a description of the CBD and map.   

 The investment must be at least $150,000.  This includes cost of renovations or new 
construction. 

 This Exemption can apply to a new residence or an existing residence.  It includes 
remodeling or improving an existing residence or constructing a new residence.  The tax 
exemption is transferrable.  If during the exemption period, new ownership of the 
residence occurs, the terms of the original exemption will carry over to the new owner 
for the unexpended portion of the exemption period. 

 If your residence is to be located in a historic district, additional steps may be required.  
These will be handled on a case-by-case basis.   

 
How to Apply: 

An application for residential tax exemption in the CBD is enclosed (Exhibit B).  Complete this 
application PRIOR to beginning construction or renovation.  After submitting a building permit 
application to the Planning and Building Department, tax exemption applications should be 
submitted to the Community and Economic Development Department. 

The Residential Tax Exemption Policy is structured to provide the City Council complete discretion 
for approving each application up to 100% for up to ten years.  The City strives to leverage this 
incentive to facilitate reconstruction and redevelopment that have been and continue to be 
affected by the current economic climate and high cost of insurance.  In order to maximize the 
potential of this opportunity, the City staff will consider the criteria below when recommending 
the level and term of a tax exemption.  The Director of Community and Economic Development 
as well as the Director of Planning and Building will evaluate applications.  Based on these 
evaluations and discussion with the City’s Economic Development Team, the Community and 
Economic Development Director will make the specific recommendation to City Council. 
 
 



 

The following point system will be used in staff evaluations: 

 Investment – 10 points 
o Value of project costs 
o Projected increased assessed value of finished product 

 Community need for development – 10 points 
o Period of time the building or site has been vacant 
o Whether or not the development location is identified as a target for 

redevelopment by the Urban Renewal Plan 
(http://cityofpascagoula.com/publications)    

 Aesthetics and Landscaping – 10 points 
o Degree of landscaping and aesthetic qualities 

Total Possible Score – 30 points 
 

For more information, contact: Jen Dearman 
Community and Economic Development Director 
228-938-6651 
jdearman@cityofpascagoula.com 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://cityofpascagoula.com/publications


The Central Business District 
(CBD) is designated as parcels 
of land lying within the 
Community Commercial (CC), 
Downtown (DT), 
Neighborhood Commercial 
(NC), Regional Commercial 
(RC), and certain Waterfront 
Mixed Use (WMU) Zones.  

These areas have been 
outlined in red below and on 
the map.  The CBD excludes  
dark blue shaded areas. 

Central Business District Map 2016 

Exhibit A



 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Residential Tax Exemption Application 

Name of Applicant: ___________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant Address: __________________________________________________________________ 

City, State, Zip Code: __________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: __________________________________ Fax: _______________________________________ 

Email: __________________________________  Is this an existing residence?   YES NO  

Project Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Value of Renovation/Construction Costs:  $___________ 

Projected value of finished product:   $___________ 

How long has the building/site been vacant? ______    Is the development in the CBD? YES NO 

Is the development in the Urban Renewal Area?   YES NO  

Is it a targeted Urban Renewal Area property?    YES NO 

Building and landscaping plans are required to evaluate a residential tax exemption application. 

Please submit these to the Director of Planning and Building once developed. 

By signing below, I hereby confirm that I am an authorized representative of the applicant and that the 

information provided is truthful to the best of my knowledge.  Furthermore, I understand that this tax 

exemption will be approved or denied, or the exemption term or amounts reduced at the sole discretion of 

the City Council of the City of Pascagoula as per the Order by which the tax exemption policy was 

established. 

Signature of Applicant: ____________________________________________ Date: _______________ 

 

 



cwarren
Typewritten Text
22

cwarren
Typewritten Text




































	Agenda 8-2-16
	1. AIR - 8-2-16 - Fireworks - PHS Football 2016 Season
	2. AIR-Address the Council-Laura Cooley-8-2-16
	3. AIR - Request to address CC - Pasc. Rec. Commission  2016
	4. AIR - 8-2-16 - Resolution Property Cleanup - 2704 Canty
	5. AIR 8-2-16 - Resolution Property Cleanup - Denny & Louise
	6. AIR - Minutes 7-19 & 7-25
	7. AIR - PRA minutes 6-6-2016 and 6-30-2016
	8. AIR - Rec. Comm. Minutes June 2016
	Binder1.pdf
	AIR - minutes
	Rec. Commission Minutes June 2016.pdf
	Rec. Comm.6-01-16
	RCS Baseball Facility 2016
	20160526092856273.pdf


	RCS Baseball Facility Worksheet

	9. AIR Unmarked Vehicles 2016
	10. AIR - Postage Funds $3000 with Neo-Post for City Hall 8-2
	11.1 AIR fy16 ACTION PLAN AND RESOLUTION
	11.2 FY16 ACTION PLAN agenda revised 7-29-16
	FY16 ACTION PLAN agenda revised 7-28-16
	FY16 ACTION PLAN agenda

	Final Action Plan - Revised 7-29-16

	12. AIR - P&R Fee Schedule Summer 2016
	13. AIR -8-2-16 - Ordinance to amend Section 58-31 to increase number of Planning Board members
	14. AIR - 8-2-16 - Advertising the Resources - Blues Commission
	15. AIR - 8-2-16 - Resolution authorizing transfer of G0-Devil Boat to Jackson County
	16. AIR Harley Lease Extension Proposal 2016
	17. 2016 6 22  HPC Minutes- AIR
	2016 6 22  HPC Minutes- AIR  flat
	2016 06 22  HPC Minutes

	18. Flagship Citizen Award
	AIR - Flagship Citizen Award
	Flagship Award Program 072716

	19. AIR - Rec. Commission Appointment August 2016
	AIR - Rec Commission Appointment August 2016
	Jimmy Colmer Letter of Intent.pdf
	Joe Davis Resume

	20. AIR Election Comm.
	21. AIR - CBD Residential Tax Exemption
	22. AIR Docket of Claims



